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NHP SECURITIES NO.2 LIMITED

-7 777" "DIRECTORS' REPORT ’ i

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2006

The Directors report has been prepared 1n accordance wath the special provisions relating to small compames under
section 246(4) of the Compamies Act 1985

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company 1s the holding of freehold and long leasehold interests in predomunantly
modern, purpose-built care homes, the overnding leasehold 1nterests of which have been sold to Care Homes No |
Limted

The Directors intend to continue this actrvity mn the forthcoming year

BUSINESS REVIEW

Following the group reconstruction on 14 October 2005, Libra CareCo Offshore Superholdco Lumited (formerly
‘TBG CareCo Offshore Superholdco Liumited) became the ultimate parent company of Libra CareCo Holdings
Limited (formerly “TBG CareCo Holdings Limuted’} Libra CareCo Holdings Limuted 1s an intermediate parent
company of NHP Limited, which 1s the immediate parent undertaking of NHP Secunities No 2 Limited

On 3 March 2006, Libra No 3 Limited, a subsidhary undertaking of The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, acquired 100%
1ssued share capital of Libra CareCo Offshore Superholdco Limited from funds admmmstered by The Blackstone
Group and any additional share capatal, held outside Libra CareCo Offshore Superholdco Limited, tn Libra CareCo
Holdings Limited

In the year to 30 September 2006, the Company has continued to recerve overnding rent from Care Homes No |
Limited The Company wli continue to receive overriding rent from Care Homes No 1 Limiuted for the foreseeable
future

At the beginning and end of the financial year the Company owned residual property interests in 15 frechold and 2
long leasehold care homes, i respect of which overniding leases have been granted to Care Homes No 1 Limited and
valued at £31,677,039 (2005 - £31,255,529)

On 4 December 2006, the Company paid Care Homes No 2 Limted a total amount of £30,809,580 to enter wnto
deeds of overnding lease vanation whereby the Company 1s entitled to all mcome recerved on the underlyimng leases
other than a small profit left in that company

On 12 December, 2006 Delta Commercial Property LP, a himited partnership incorporated in the Isle of Man
acquired 100% 1ssued share capital of Libra No 2 Lumited, the immediate parent undertaking of Libra No 3 Limted
from The Royal Bank of Scotland plc

RESULTS
The results for the year to 30 September 2006 are set out 1n the profit and loss account on page 8

DIVIDENDS
No dividends 1n respect of the year are proposed (2005 - £ ul)
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DIRECTORS

NHP SECURITIES NO.2 LIMITED

The following Directors served throughout the year except as noted

P V Taylor
R N Midmer
P Aubery

T V Castledine
S B Eighteen
A C Farnell
N S Moy

J Murphy

C Rutter

P H Scott

G K Sizer
W Colvin

Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director

Date Appointed
12 December 2006

12 December 2006
3 March 2006
3 March 2006
3 March 2006
3 March 2006
3 March 2006

Date Resigned

12 December 2006
12 December 2006
12 December 2006
12 December 2006
12 December 2006

3 March 2006

3 March 2006

3 March 2006

3 March 2006

3 March 2006

The current Directors of the Company are detailed on page 1

No Director has, or had, any imnterests 1n the shares of the Company No Director holds a service contract with the
Company and there 15 no Company share option scheme 1n existence

The Directors who served during the year and held shares 1n the former ultimate parent undertaking, Libra CareCo
Holdings Limited are showm below

At 30 September 2005
Number of ordinary
shares of 1p each

J Murphy 878
C Rutter 754
P H Scott 2,403
G K Sizer 1,333
W Colvin 3,064
Total 8,432

The shares were fully disposed of following the direct and indirect acquisition by Libra No 3 Limited of the 1ssued
share capatal of that company on 3 March 2006

The following Darectors were beneficially interested m the ordinary shares of The Royal Bank of Scotland Group
plc

At date of
appointment on 3
March 2006 At 30 September 2006

P Aubery 1,811 1,967
T V Castiedine 376 1,643
S B Eighteen 188 188
A C Famell 15,277 12,506
N S Moy 338 1,507




NHP SECURITIES NO.2 LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES - T T T e

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements 1n accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accountng Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law} The financial statements are
required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period In prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are required to

(a) select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
b) make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
(©) state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

(d) prepare the financial statements on the gomng concern basis unless 1t 1s mappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue mn business

The Directors are responstble for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF NHP SECURITIES NO.2 LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of NHP Secunities No 2 ELimited for the year ended September 2006,
which compnise of the profit and loss account, the balance sheet, the statement of total recognised gains and losses,
the reconciliation of movements 1n shareholders’ funds, the note of historical cost profits and losses and the related
notes 1 to 16 These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies
Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we mught state to the Company’s members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Directors’ responsimhities for preparing the financial statements 1 accordance with apphcable law and Umited
Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements 1n accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report 1o you our opimon as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly
prepared m accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opimon the information
given mn the directors’ report 1s consistent wath the financial statements

In addition, we report to you if, 1n our opnion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, 1f we have not
recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding
directors' remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the directors’ report and consider the imphications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
musstatements within 1t

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures m the financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtamn all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary 1 order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other wregulanty or error In forming our opmion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of informatton 1n the financial statements




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF NHP SECURITIES NO.2 LIMITED _(CONTINUED) ... _

Opinion

In our opiion

. the financial statements give a true and fair view, 1n accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 September 2006 and of 1ts profit for the
year then ended,

. the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

. the information given 1n the directors’ report 1s consistent with the financial statements

%\&Q‘ZTM&& E\Q

loitte & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

e 35l 250y




PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Year ended 30 September 2006

TURNOVER AND GROSS PROFIT
Admunistrative expenses

OPERATING PROFIT
Gain on disposal of residual property interest
Net interest payable and similar charges

PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE TAXATION

Tax credit/(charge)} on profit on ordinary
activitics

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation
and retained profit for the financial year

12

NHP SECURITIES NO.2 LIMITED

2006 2005
£ £
1,715,980 1,454,799
(96,701) (125,051)
1,619,279 1,329,748
- 455,359
(357,182) (415,246)
1,262,097 1,370,361
92,644 (449,187)
1,354,741 921,174

Turnover and operating profit are wholly derived from continuing operations




'BALANCE SHEET

30 September 2006

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Land and buildings

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors
Cash at bank and n hand

CREDITORS amounts falling due
within one year

NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

CREDITORS: amounts fatling due after
more than one year
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital
Revaluation reserve

Profit and loss account

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

Notes

oo

11
12
12

NHP SECURITIES NO.2 LIMITED

2006 2005
£ £ £ £
31,677,039 31,255,529
1,324,750 30,904
- 1,137
1,324,750 32,041
(815,889) (835,639)
508,861 (803,598)
32,185,900 30,451,931
(4,201,615) (4,201,615)
(328,679) (370,961)
27,655,606 25,879,355
2 2
20,306,002 19,884,492
7,349,602 5,994,861

27,655,606 25,879,355

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2007]

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

QO\QU\LA\,

R N Midmer
Director




NHP SECURITIES NO.2 LIMITED

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
Year ended 30 September 2006

2006 2005
Note £ £
Profit for the year 1,354,741 921,174
Net surplus on revaluation of land and buildings 12 421,510 13,634,886
Total recogmsed gains and losses for the year 1,776,251 14,556,060
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Year ended 30 September 2006
2006 2005
Note £ £
Profit for the year 1,354,741 921,174
Surplus on revaluation of land and buildings 12 421,510 13,634,886
Net increase in shareholders’ funds 1,776,251 14,556,060
Shareholders’ funds at the beginmng of the year 25,879,355 11,323,295
Shareholders’ funds at the end of the year 27,655,606 25,879,355
NOTE OF HISTORICAL COST PROFITS AND LOSSES
Year ended 30 September 2006
2006 2005
£ £
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,262,097 1,370,361
Realisation of net vatuation gains on disposal of property interests - 713,000
Historical cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,262,097 2,083,361
Historical cost profit retained for the year 1,354,741 921,174

10




NHP SECURITIES NO.2 LIMITED

“NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS - - i T
Year ended 30 September 2006

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
residual freehold and long leasehold property interests, and in accordance with all applicable accounting
standards The particular accounting policies adopted are described below The financial statements are in
comphance with the Compames Act 1985 except that, as explained below, residual property mnterests are not
depreciated

The accounting policies have been followed consistently during the current and previous years
Turnover

Turnover represents amounts receivable on overnding lease rents due 1in the normal course of business
Valuation of residual property interests

Investrment properties were valued by the Directors on a portfolio basis at Market Value n accordance with
the Apprasal and Valuatton Standards published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Residual
property 1nterests represent freehold and long leasehold properties held for long term retention, which are
subject to overriding leases granted Residual property interests were valued using the residual income
following the payment of costs in connection of the servicing of debts by Care Homes No 1 Linutd, Care
Homes No 2 Limited and Care Homes No 3 Limited The aggregate revaluation surplus or deficit 18
transferred to the revaluation reserve whilst any permanent impairment 1s charged to the profit and loss
account

Depreciation

In accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No 19, no depreciation 1s provided 1n respect
of residual property interests Under the terms of the Company’s leases, such properties are required to be
mamntamed to a high standard by the tenants

This treatment 15 a departure from the requirements of the Compames Act 1985, which requires all fixed
assets to be depreciated over their effective useful hves However, such property interests are not held for
consumption, but for investment, and the Directors consider that systematic depreciation would be
mappropriate and would not give a true and fair view The accounting policy adopted and departure from the
Compames Act 1985 1s therefore necessary for the accounts to give a true and fair view Depreciation 1s one
of the factors reflected 1n the annual revaluation and amounts which might otherwise have been charged
cannot be separately identified or quantified

Taxation

Current tax, including UK corporation tax, 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using
the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s provided n full on iiming differences which have onginated at the balance sheet date and
which could give rse to an obligation to pay more or less tax i the future Deferred tax 1s measured at the
average tax rates that are expected o apply in the periods 1n which the umung differences are expected to
reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
Deferred tax 15 not recogmsed in respect of gains and losses on revalued assets unless the company has
entered 1nto a binding agreement to sell the assets and the gamns or losses have been recogmsed in the profit
and loss account Deferred tax assets are recogmsed to the extent that 1t 15 regarded as more likely than not
that they will be recovered Deferred tax assets and hiabilities are not discounted

Interest

Interest receivable and interest payable are recogmsed m the financial statements on an accruals basis

11



NHP SECURITIES NO.2 LIMITED

“NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS e o
Year ended 30 September 2006

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cash flow statement

As the Company is a wholly owned subsidiary, 1t has taken exemption under the terms of Financial Reporting
Standard 1 (revised 1996) ‘Cash flow statements’ from prepanng cash flow statement, as 1t 1s included 1n the
consolidated financial statements of Libra CareCo Offshore Superholdco Limited, which are publicly
available

TURNOVER AND GROSS PROFIT

Turnover comprnses the following earned from the Company’s ordinary activines which take place wholly
within the Umted Kingdom

2006 2005
£ £

Overnding lease rents recerved from Care
Homes No I Limited 1,715,980 1,454,799

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
The Company had no employees during the current or preceding year

The Directors at year ended 30 September 2006 are executives of The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, the
ultimate parent company None of them received emoluments directly from the Company during the current
and preceding year

Administrative expenses imclude

2006 2005
£ £
(Group management fees 80,507 71,761
Depreciation - 46,090
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services 5,996 7,200
NET INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES

2006 2005

£ £

Interest receivable on deposits - 41)
Interest payable to NHP Limuted 1n respect of loan notes 357,137 357,137
Interest payable to NHP Securities No 3 Limuted 1n respect of loan notes - 58,150
Interest payable — other 4 -
Finance costs 41 -
357,182 415,246

12




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Year ended 30 September 2006

5.

6.

TAX ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Corporation tax credit/ (charge)
Current year
Prior year

Decrease/(Increase} in deferred tax liability provided

Total tax credit/ (charge)

Profit before tax

Tax on profits at standard rate of 30% (2005 30%)
Factors affecting tax charge

Permanent differences

Capntal allowances 1n excess of depreciation
Group relief for mil consideration

Current tax (credit)/charge

NHP SECURITIES NO.2 LIMITED

2006 2008
£ £
- (86,393)
50,362 -
50,362 (86,393)
42282  (362,794)
92,644  (449,187)
1,262,097 1,370,361
378,629 411,108
- (136,758)
(47,204)  (49,112)
(331,425)  (138,845)
- 86,393

The tax charge for the current year 1s lower than that resulting from applying the standard rate of corporation
tax, pnmarnily due to group relief surrendered by other group compantes for £ml consideration

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

At valuation 1 October 2005
Net surplus on revaluation, transferred to revaluation
reserve (note 12)

At valuation 30 September 2006

Residual
Residual long
freehold leasehold

property property

interest interest Total

£ £ £
27,186,670 4,068,859 31,255,529
130,340 291,170 421,510
27,317,010 4,360,029 31,677,039

The notional apportionment of value between freehold mvestment properties and long leasehold nvestment
properties has been calculated by the Directors according to the ratios of the pavement rents of the underlying

assets

13



NHP SECURITIES NO.2 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS ‘ : - -
Year ended 30 September 2006

6.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Investment properties were valued a1 30 September 2006 by the Directors (2005 Gerald Eve, National
Property Advisors) on the basis of Market Value on a portfolio basis m accordance with the Appraisal and
Valuation Standards published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors The Drrectors have calculated
the residual property interests held at 30 September 2006 using the Market Value of the investment properties
valued by Gerald Eve The residual property mterests 1s calculated using the residual income, after servicing
the debts of Care Homes 1 Limited, Care Homes 2 Limited and Care Homes 3 Liumuted at fair value The
Directors have not calculated the valuation of the mdividual properties wathin the portfolio The Directors
have considered carefully and are of the opinion that thus departure 1s appropriate, being the income received
by the Company 15 the residval income for the portfolio, following the payment by Care Homes No 1 Limited,
Care Homes No 2 Limited, Care Homes No 3 Limuted, as appropnate, of all costs in connection with the
servicing of the debt These costs include mierest payable, taxation, dividends and operating costs The costs
do not relate directly to the individual properties They anse on the portfolio as a whole and are subsequently
notionally apportioned to the individual properties for statutory reporting purposes

At 30 September 2006, the Directors have valued the residual property mnterests in the portfoho at
£31,677,039 (2005 £31,255,529)

The historical cost of residual property interests 1s £11,608,777 {2005 - £11,608,777)

Seven homes (2005 7) are subject to discreticnary buy-back options by their respective operators A further
seven homes (2003 7) are subject to buy-back options by their respective operators only in the event of
irrecoverable VAT becomung levied on the rents charged to the operators The buy-back options may be
exercised at purchase prices equivalent to the higher of a formulated figure or the “market value” (as defined
in the respective leases) of the landlord’s reversionary interest and of the landlord’s fixtures and fitungs

At 30 September 2006 the Company had contractual capital commutments not completed or accrued of £ ml
(2005 —£ ml)

DEBTORS

20006 2005
£ £
Other debtors 8,392 -
Corporation tax 50,362 -
Amounts owed by Care Homes No 1 Limited 143,905 -
Amounts owed by fellow subsidiary undertaking 1,122,091 30,904
1,324,750 30,904

CREDITORS. AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2000 2005
£ £
Other creditors - 343,496
Corporation tax - 51,393
Amounts owed to NHP Limited 762,190 405,054
Amounts owed to fellow subsidiary undertaking 53,699 35,696

815,889 835,639

14




NHP SECURITIES NO.2 LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS i : - - - - e - -
Year ended 30 September 2006

9.

10.

11.

12,

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

2006 2005
£ £
Loan notes due to NHP Linuted 4,201,615 4,201,615

The loan notes, which represent the consideration payable for assets transferred from group compames, have
no final repayment dates and carry loan interest at 8 5% (2004 — 8 5%) per annum

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

Provided Unprovided
2006 2005 2006 2005
Deferred taxation £ £ £ £
Accelerated capital allowances 328,679 370,961 - -
Revaluation of mvestment properties - - 8,641,886 8,515,433
328,679 370,961 8,641,886 8,515,433

The value of assets qualifying for capital allowances to be used in the calculatton of deferred tax, 1s an
apportionment of the total portfolio value The Company has, as at 30 September 2006, provided deferred tax
of £328,679 1n respect of accelerated capital allowances (2005 £370,961)

The deferred tax hability on the potential capital gain ansing in relation to the revalued freeholds of
£8,641,886 (2005 £8,515,433) 1s not recogmised as the Company has no mtention to sell these properties at
this time and there 1s no binding agreement

CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

2006 2005
£ £
Authorised:
100 ordinary shares at £1 each 100 100
Called up, allotted and fully paid:
2 ordinary shares of £1 each 2 2
RESERVES
Profit
Revaluation and loss
Reserve account
£ £
At 1 October 2005 16,884,492 5,894 861
Net surplus on revaluation of land and bwildings 421,510 -
Retained profit for the year - 1,354,741
At 30 September 2006 20,306,002 7,349,602

15




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

NHP SECURITIES NO.2 LIMITED

Year ended 30 September 2006

13.

14,

15.

16

GUARANTEE

The Company 15 one of the guarantors to a £1,172 mullion term loan facility agreement entered nto by Libra
No 3 Limuted wath Credit Suisse on 15 January 2007 as disclosed n note 14 (d)

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

a) On 4 December 2006, the Company paid Care Homes No 1 Limited a total amount of £30,809,580 to
enter mto deeds of overnding lease variation whereby the Company 1s entitled to all income recerved on
the underlying leases other than a small profit left in that company

b) On 12 December 2006, Delta Commercial Property LP, a hmuted partnership incorporated 1n the Isle of
Man acquired 100% 1ssued share capital of Libra No 2 Lumted, the immediate parent undertaking of
Libra No 3 Limuted from The Royal Bank of Scotland plc Following the change of ownership, Mr P V
Taylor and Mr R N Midmer have been appouwnted as Directors of the Company

¢} The Company was one of the guarantors to a £1,106 mulhon facility agreement entered into by Libra No
3 Limited and Libra No 2 Limited {together, the borrewers) with The Royal Bank of Scotland ple (the
lender) The facility agreement was subsequently replaced by a new term loan facility agreement as has
been disclosed 1n note 14 (d)

d) The Company 1s one of the guarantors to a £1,172 mullion term loan facility agreement entered into by
Libra No 3 Limuted, as the borrower and Credit Suisse, as the lender on 15 January 2007

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard No 8 “Related Party Disclosures”, transactions with other
undertakings withun the Libra CareCo Offshore Superhoidco Limited (previously ‘Libra CareCo Holdings
Lirmuted’) group have not been disclosed in these financial statemenis At 30 September 2006, although Care
Homes No 1 Limited has been consolidated as part of that group by reason of contractual arrangements with
Libra CareCo Offshore Superholdco Limuted (previously ‘Libra CareCo Holdings Limited’), 1t 15 not a
subsidiary of that company, and therefore the exemption under Financial Reporting Standard No 8 “Related
Party Disclosures” cannot be applied for transactions with Care Homes No 1 Limited These transactions,
whch are disclosed 1 notes 2 and 7 of these financial statements, compnse the granting of overnding leases
over freehold and long leasehold properties, and the receipt of overniding lease rents in connection with these
propertics

PARENT UNDERTAKINGS AND CONTROLLING PARTIES

The immediate parent undertaking 1s NHP Limited, a company incorporated in Great Britain and registered mn
England and Wales The ultimate parent undertaking and controlhing party at 30 September 2006 1s The
Royal Bank of Scotland plc, a company mcorporated in Great Britain and registered in Scotland The Royal
Bank of Scotland plc has an accounting peniod end of 31 December, as opposed to the Company’s accounting
year of 30 September, therefore the results of the Company are consolidated wathin Libra CareCo Offshore
Superholdco Limited, 1its intermediate ultimate parent undertaking, a company incorporated and registered in
the Cayman Islands Libra CareCo Offshore Superholdco Limited 1s both the smallest and largest group
mcludmmg the Company for which consolidated accounts are prepared

As of 12 December 2006, the new ulumate parent undertaking 1s Delta Commercial Property LP, a limated
partnership ncorporated and registered in the Isle of Man In the opinion of the Directors, there 1s no ultimate
controlling party of that company

Copies of the Libra CareCo Offshore Superholdco Limted consohdated financial statements to 30 September
2006, which include the results of the Company, are available from NHP Group at Block A, Upper Ground
Floor, Dukes Court, Duke Street, Woking, Surrey GU21 SBH

16
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LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present thewr annval report and the audited consohdated financial statements for the year ended 30
September 2006 Comparative figures are presented, under merger accounting principles for the penod from 25
November 2004 to 30 September 2005

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (Umted Kingdom accounting standards and applicable law which would apply if the Company was
mcorporated in Great Britain)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Group 15 the purchase and retention of freehold and long leasehold nterests, in modern,
purpose-built care homes

The principal acuvity of the Company 1s to act as a holding company, which conducts corporate activities on behalf
of the Group The Directors intend to contmue these activities in the forthcoming year

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company was incorporated and registered in the Cayman Islands under the name of TBG CareCo Offshore
Superholdco Limited on 13 October 2005 The name was subsequently changed to Libra CareCo Offshore
Superholdco Lumited on 6 March 2006

On 14 October 2005 the Group carried out a corporate restructuring, including the mtreduction of this Company as
the new parent company, to provide greater strategic and financial flexibility

As part of the corporate restructuring on 14 October 2005, the funds managed by The Blackstone Group exchanged
therr holdings of 201,742 1ssued ordmary shares at £0 01 each n the previous parent company, Libra CareCo
Holdings Limited (formerly ‘TBG CareCo Holdings Linmted") with the 1ssued ordinary shares of Libra CareCo
Offshore Equty Co Limited (formerly *“TBG CareCo Offshore Equity Co Lumited) 1n the ratio of one Libra CareCo
Offshore Equity Co Limited ordinary shares of £0 01 each for each Libra CareCo Holdings Limited ordinary shares
of £0 01 each The holdings owned by the funds managed by The Blackstone Group mn Libra CareCo Offshore
Equity Co Limited was subsequently rolled-over into the 1ssued share capital of Libra CareCo Offshore TopCo
Limited (formerly ‘TBG CareCo Offshore TopCo Limited’) m the ratio of one Libra CareCo Offshore TopCo
Limited ordmary shares of £0 01 each for each Libra CareCo Offshore Equity Co Limited ordinary shares of £0 01
each Following the completion of the roll-over into the 1ssued share capital of Libra CareCo Offshore TopCo
Limited, the holdings owned by the funds managed by The Blackstone Group were ultimately rolled-over 1nto the
1ssued share capital of Libra CareCo Offshore Superholdco Limited in the ratio of one Libra CareCo Offshore
SuperholdCo Limited ordinary shares of £0 01 each for each Libra CareCo Offshore TopCo Limited ordmnary shares
of £0 01 each

On 17 October 2005 the Group entered nto a £327 0 milhon bridge loan facility agreement with Barclays Bank Plc,

Ciubank N A London, Prudential Finance (UK) Plc and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc (collectively ‘the
lenders”)

Using part of the draw down bnidge loan facility, on 20 October 2005 the Group repaid Deep Discount Bonds the
nominal value of which was £314 5 milhion for issue price plus rolled up nterest of £129 3 milhon £1 6 mullion of
the management unsecured bonds were redeemed on 4 November 2005

On 2 March 2006, the Group sold its 25 01% shareholdings im G R Patrick & Co Limuted at a total cost of £25,000
On 3 March 2006, holders of 5,848 ordinary shares in Libra CareCo Holdings Limited rolled over their shareholding

mto Libra CareCo Offshore Equity Co Limited mn the ratio of one Libra CareCo Offshore Equity Co Limited
ordinary shares of £0 01 each for each Libra CareCo Holdings Limited ordinary shares of £0 01 each




LIBRA CARECOQO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)
BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Therr shareholdings are further rolled over inte Libra CareCo Offshore TopCo Limited m the ratio of one Libra
CareCo Offshore TopCo Lirmted ordinary share of £0 01 each for each Libra CareCo Offshore Equity Co Limited
ordinary shares of £0 01 each Their shareholdings are ultimately rolled over to Libra CareCo Offshore Superholdco
Limited 1n the ratio of one Libra CareCo Offshore Superholdco Limited ordinary shares of £0 01 each for each Libra
CareCo Offshore TopCo Limited ordinary shares of £0 01 each

Following the completion of shareholdings rolled over above, on the same date, Libra No 3 Limited, a subsidiary
undertaking of The Royal Bank of Scotland plc acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Libra CareCo Offshore
Superholdco Limited and a minority interest of 3,411 ordinary shares of £0 01 each n Libra CareCo Holdings
Limited Libra No 2 Limited became the ultimate parent company as of 3 March 2006

At 30 September 2006, the Group owned 298 mnvestment properties valued at £1,195 0 milion (2005 297
investment properties at £1,015 0 million)

On 17 November 2006, Care Homes No 1 Limited, a group owned company, terminated its AAA rated Swap
Deposit Agreement with General Re Financial Product Corporation which guaranteed to provide for the repayment
of the £100 million Secured Notes at nominal value i April 2021 The termmated value was £54 5 million The full
amount was deposited mn a General Investment Deposit Contract with The Royal Bank of Scotland plc on 17
November 2006 at compounded wmnterest rate of 4 220140% per annum which 1s guaranteed to provide for the
repayment of the £100 milhon of 1ts Secured Notes at nominal value m Apnil 2021 On the same date, Care Homes
No 2 Lumited terminated its AAA rated Swap Deposit Agreement with General Re Financial Preduct Corporation
which guaranteed to provide for the repayment of the £180 million Class A Secured Notes at nommal value in
February 2023 The terminated value was £82 4 million The full amount was deposited 1n a General Investment
Deposit Contract with The Royal Bank of Scotland ple at compounded imterest rate of 4 812011% per annum which
1s guaranteed to provide for the repayment of the £180 million Class A Secured Notes at nominal value i February
2023 Care Homes No 3 Limited terminated its AAA rated Zero Coupon Notes 1ssued by European Investment
Bank which guaranteed to provide for the repayment of the £128 milhon Class A Secured Notes at nomimal value in
December 2028 The terminated value was £50.8 milhon The full amount was deposited 1n a General Investment
Deposit Contract with The Royal Bank of Scotland plc at compounded interest rate of 4 186857% per annum which
1s guaranteed to provide for the repayment of the £128 million Class A Secured Notes at nominal value m December
2028

On | December 2006, NHP Securities No 1 Limated, Libra CareCo CH2 PropCo Limited and Libra CareCo CH3
PropCo Limited acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Care Homes No 1 Limted, Care Homes No 2
Limited and Care Homes No 3 Limuted for price of £0 1 million, £0 4 million and £0 3 million respectively

On 4 December 2006, Care Homes No 1 Limited, Care Homes No 2 Limited and Care Homes No 3 Limuted
terminated thewr General Investment Deposit Contracts with The Royal Bank of Scotland ple, and the amounts
recerved were £54 6 million, £82 6 million and £50 9 million respectively

On 4 December 2006, Care Homes No 1 Limited, Care Homes No 2 Limited and Care Homes No 3 Limited
novated therr Secured Notes to The Royal Bank of Scotland ple at market value of £138 4 mlhon, £320 7 million
and £261 0 milhon respectively

On 12 December 2006, Delta Commercial Property LP, a himted partnership incorporated n the lsle of Man,
acquired a 100% 1ssued share capital of Libra No 2 Limited, the immediate parent undertaking of Libra No 3
Limited from The Royal Bank of Scotland plc




LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)
RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2006 are set out mn the consoldated profit and loss
account on page 10 The loss for the year before taxation 1s £21 2Zmillion (2005 profit before taxation for the period
from 24 November 2004 to 30 September 2005 of £30 6 mithion) The matenal change in the results of the Group
was principally due to corporate restructuring as set out in the business review Other movements In reserves are
shown 1n note 21 of the financial statements

The principal Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) used by the Group mnto measure 1ts own performance are shown
below The accounting period for the Group for the previous period was from 25 November 2004 to 30 September
2005 but the comparative trading results included 1n the Group were effectively from 18 February 2005 following
the acquisition of NHP Limted on that date

Due to an msigmficant percentage of 1ssued share capital owned by the mimonty nterest holders during the current
year at 1.62% (2005 4 39%), the principal Key Performance Indicators have been presented as if the Group owned
100% of the 1ssued share capital

Increase/
2006 2005 {decrease)
Tumover ¢ £666m £46 Tm £19 5m
Operating profit excluding exceptional costs* £64 6m £44 2m £20 4m
Operating cash flow after interest** £(2 6m) £20 0m £(22 6)
Shareholders’ funds# £363 Om £203 5m £159 5m

Group turnover for the year ended 30 September 2006 was £66 6m as compared to £46 7m for the preceding penod
ended 30 September 2005 Based on the fact that the prior accounting period was from 25 November 2004 to 30
September 2005 and the current accounting period 15 for the year ended 30 September 2006, the effective increase i
Group tumover 15 £2 2tn as opposed to £19 9m The adjusted 2005 Group turnover of £64 4m 15 calculated as the
2005 Group turnover of £46 7m plus rent excluded in that period of £24 2m due to a short accounting peniod, less
rent for homes sold 1n 2005 of £6 5m This produced a favourable varance of 3 4%, which 1s calculated based on
the adjusted 2005 Group turnover

*QOperating profit excluding exceptional costs for the year ended 30 September 2006 1s calculated as operating profit
of £56 7m plus exceptional costs of £7 9m (period ended 30 September 2005 £42 Tm plus £1 Sm)

The effective inmprovement in operating profit excluding exceptional costs 15 £5 5m as compared to £20 4m This
produced a favourable vaniance of 9 3%, which 1s calculated based on the adjusted 2005 operating profit excluding
exceptional costs The adjusted 2005 operating profit excluding exceptional costs of £59 Im is calculated as
operating profit excluding exceptional costs of £44 2m plus rent excluded n that period of £24 2m due to a short
accounting period, less rent for homes sold i 2005 of £6 5m and less operating costs excluded in that peried of
£2 8m The favourable vaniance 15 primanly due to better cost control in the current year

**Operating cash flow after interest for the year ended 30 September 2006 15 calculated as net cash nflow from
operating activities of £56 8m less net cash outflow from remuns on mnvestment and servicing of finance of £59 4m
{period ended 30 September 2005 £61 Om less £41 Om)

During the year ended 30 September 2006 the Group incurred and paid one off financing costs on vanous facihity
agreements termmnated following corporate restructuring as noted i notes 1 ‘Corporate Restructuning’ and 9 ‘Net
Interest Payable and Similar Charges’ of the financial statements The Directors anticipate an ymprovement in the

results of the Group 1 future accounting penods, following the restructuring outlined 1 note 32 ‘Post Balance Sheet
Events’




LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
RESULTS {continued)
# Shareholders funds (net of the share of mmonty mnterest holders) have mcreased from £203 Sm at 3¢ September

2005 to £363 Om at 30 September 2006 principally due to the increase in the value of mvestment properties, which
m turn 1s due to the third party tenants continued improvement to their profitability on NHP owned homes

DIVIDENDS

No dividends 1n respect of the year are proposed (period from 25 November 2004 to 30 September 2005 £mil)

DIRECTORS

The followmng Directors served throughout the period

Directors Date Appointed
D Egglishaw Executive Director 13 October 2005
J Cullinane Executive Director 13 October 2005
D Boggess Executive Director 13 October 2005

No Drrector has, or had, any interests in the shares of the Company or of any subsidiary undertaking. None of the
Directors hold a service contract with the Company or with any subsidiary undertakings TFhere 1s no Company share
option scheme 1 exastence

None of the Directors has had any interests n the shares of the new ultumate paremt company, Delta Commercial
Property LP

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Directors have the overall responsibilities for the Group in assessing risk and taking appropnate action

Cash flow risk
The Group used dertvative financial instruments to reduce the exposure to mterest rate movements 1 line with the

Group’s risk management policies as approved by the Board of Directors The interest rate swap agreements were
terminated on 3 March 2006 The Group does not use denvative financial mstruments for speculative purposes

Credit risk
Credit risk 1s attributable to receivables n relation to rents recervable from third party tenants

The Group has no sigmficant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure ultimately spread over a large number of
third party tenants

Liquidity risk
In order to mamtain hquidity and to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongomng operations and future
developments, the Group contmnue to receive 1ts support from Libra No 3 Limited, its immediate parent undertaking

PAYMENT TO CREDITORS

The Group's policy 15 to fix payment terms when agreemng the terms of each transaction It 1s the Group’s general
policy to pay supphers in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions, provided that the suppher has complied
with those terms The creditor’s days for the Group at 30 September 2006, calculated mn accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 were 10 (2005 18) Creditor days for the Company at 30 September 2006 were il (2005 ml)




LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

DIRECTORS® REPORT (continued)
EMPLOYMENT POLICY

The Group supports the principle of Equal Opportunities in employment and opposes all forms of unfar and
unlawful discrimmation The Group’s employment policies are designed to attract, retain and motivate the very best
people, recognising that this can be achieved only through offering equal opportumties regardless of gender, race,
religion or disability

THIRD PARTY INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Group has made qualifying third party indemmity provisions for the benefit of 1ts Directors, which were made
durning the year and remain 1n force to the date of this report

AUDITORS

Each of the persons wheo 1s a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

1} so far as the Directors 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audut information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware, and

2) the Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director mn order to make himself aware
of any relevant audit mformation and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that
mformatton

This confirmation 1s given and should be mterpreted in accordance with the provisions of s234ZA of the Compantes
Act 1985

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed therr willmgness to contmue n office as auditors and a resolution to re-
appoint them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annwal General Meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors
And signed on behalf of the Board

D Boggess
Director
Date 25 Apnil 2007




LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES - - — - - . — - =

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements m accordance with
applicable law and regulations

The Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements i accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law which would apply if the
company was imcorporated in Great Britam) The financial statements are required by such law to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the Group and of the profit and loss of the Group for that
pertod In preparing these financial statements, the Directors have elected to

(a) select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
(b make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
{c) state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards bave been followed, subject to any matenal

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

(d) prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that
the company will continue 1n business

The Directors are responsible for keepng proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
nme the financial position of the Company and to enable them 1o ensure that the financial statements comply with
the Compamies Act 1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and Group and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other uregularities

The Directors are responsible for the mamntenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information ncluded
on the Company’s website




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED
- (formerly ‘TBG CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED®) - -

We have audited the Group and individual company non-statutory financial statements of Libra Careco Offshore
Superholdco Limited (formerly ‘TBG Careco Offshore Superholdco Limited’) (the ‘Company?) for the year ended
30 September 2006, which comprise the consolidated profit and loss account, the balance sheets, the consolidated
cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses, the consohdated reconciliation
of movements 1n shareholders’ funds, the consolidated note of historical cost prefits and losses and the related notes
1 to 33 (all expressed n Pounds Sterling) These non-statutory financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting pohcies set out therein

Thas report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditors’ report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opmicns we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for prepanng the non-statutory financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law
which would apply iIf the company was mcorporated i Great Britain) They are also responsible for making
available to us, as and when required, all the accounting records and all other relevant records and related
information, mcluding minutes of all management and shareholders’ meehings

Our responsibility 1s to audit the non-statutory financtal statements in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you whether in our opinton the non-statutory financial statements are prepared in conformity with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (Unuted Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable
law which would apply if the company was icorporated in Great Britain) and whether the mformation given in the
Duectors’ Report 1s consistent with the non-statutory financial staternents

Basis of audit opinion

We canducted cur audit m accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examnation, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the non-statutory financial statements It also includes an assessment of the sigmficant estimates and
judgements made by the Directors m the preparation of the non-statutory financial statements and of whether the
accounting policies are appropnate to the Company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtan all the mformation and explanations which we considered
necessary 1w order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the non-statutory
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other wregulanity or error In
forming our opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of mformatton 1n the non-statutory
financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion

e the non-statutory financial statements give a true and far view, m all matenal respects, of the financial
position of the Company as at 30 September 2006 and of its loss for the year then ended, in conformity
with Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards
and applicable law which would apply if the company was mcorporated 1n Great Britan), and

¢ the mformation given n the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the non-statutory financial statements

@éﬁ;&l&g{ TcEIN&-\Q L\Q

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London, Umited Kingdom

IS % e




LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT - - - - - -
Year ended 30 September 2006

Period from
25 November

Year ended 2004 to
30 September 30 September
2006 2005
Notes £000 £000
TURNOVER AND GROSS PROFIT
Continuing operations 3 66,565 46,717
Admumistrative expenses - ongomng (1,956) {2,546)
- exceptional 5 {7,882) (1,489)
Total administrative expenses (9,838) (4,035)
OPERATING PROFIT
Continuing operations 6 56,727 42,682
Share of associated undertaking’s operatng profit 7 31 23
Total operating profit 56,758 42,705
(Loss)/Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets (158) 41,098
Net loss on disposal of investments 8 (562) (144)
Net interest payable and similar charges 9 (77,226) (53,086)
(LOSS)/PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE TAXATION (21,188) 30,573
Tax on (loss)/profit on ordinary actrvities 10 @11 (200)
(LOSS)/PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER
TAXATION - (21,599) 30,373
Equity minonty interests 19 369 (1,333)
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR/PERIOD (21,230) 29,040
Dividend payable - -
RETAINED (LOSSYPROFIT TRANSFERRED TO 21
RESERVES {21,230) 29,040

Results are derived wholly from continwing operations

During the year, the Group carried out a corporate restructuring including the introduction of this Company as the
new parent undertaking The profit and loss account has been prepared using merger accounting and 1s presented on
a pro forma basis as 1f the new parent undertaking has been in existence throughout both the current year and the
preceding period Further information 1s given in note 1 of these financial statements




BALANCE SHEETS
at 30 September 2006

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Investment properties
Other fixed assets

INVESTMENTS

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors
Short term nvestments

Cash at bank and 1n hand

CREDITORS. amounts falling due

within one year

NET CURRENT

ASSETS/ALIABILITIES)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

CREDITORS: amounts falling
due after more than one year

Equity minornity interests

NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Called up share capital
Revaluation reserve
Profit and loss account

Notes

12
12

13

14
15

16

17
19

20,22
21,22
21,22

LIBRA CARECQ OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

Group

30 September 2006

£000

7278
16,499
452
24,229

(16,309)

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS'’ FUNDS/(DEFICIT)

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 Apnil 2007
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

D Boggess
Director

£000
1,195,000
755

1,195,755
178,554

1,374,309

7,920

1,382,229
(1,015,177)
(4,098)

362,954

2
354,531
8,421

362,954

J Cullmane
Director

Group
30 September 2005
£000 £000

1,015,000
5,116

1,020,116
130,281

1,200,397

8,730
17,545

48,030

74,305

(21,382)

52,923

1,253,320
(1,040,507)
(9,342)

203,471

B

2
174,429
29,040

203,4M

Company
30 September 2006
£000 £000
2
2
2
2
(3,795)
(3,793)
(3,791)
(3,791)
2
(3,793)
(3,791)

i
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LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Year ended 30 September 2006

Pertod from

25 November
Year ended 2004 to
Note 30 September 30 September
2006 2005
£000 £000
Net cash mflow from operating activities 23 56,795 60,959
Return on investments and servicing finance
Interest paid (61,049) (42,485)
Other simtlar charges paid (net) (25) (394)
Interest received 1,703 1,836
Dividends received - 27
Net cash outflow from returns on mmvestments and servicing of finance (5%371) (41,016)
Taxation
Corporation tax pard (2,962) (1,181)
Capatal expenditure and financial investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets 13D (18,528)
Proceeds on disposal of fixed asset properties (net of disposal costs) (135) 182,648
Proceeds on disposal of other fixed assets 15 95
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from mvesting activities 2,251 164,215
Acquisifions and disposals
Net cash acquired with NHP Limited - 3,961
Acquisttion of NHP Limited - (582,143)
Proceeds on disposal of business held for resale (net of disposal costs) - 41,381
Net costs on disposal of investments (net of disposal costs) (40) (144)
Net cash outflow from acquisttrons and disposals (40) (536,945)
Net cash outflow before use of hquid resources and financing (7,829) (353,968)
Management of liquid resources
Short term deposit mvestment (net) 1,046 4,073
Financing
Loan notes
Repaid/(Issued) of loan notes by/(to) Southern Cross Healthcare Group
Limaited 9,499 (9,499)
Issue of loan notes by Libra No 3 Limited 405,791 -
Issue of loan notes by Southern Cross Healthcare Group Limited group - 29,800
Loan note repaid to Southern Cross Healthcare Group Limited group - (29,800)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from the 1ssue of loan notes 415,290 (9,499)
Equity
Issue of ordinary shares - 2
Net cash inflow from equity financing - 2
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities carried forward 415,290 (9,49

11




LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED.CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended 30 September 2006

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities brought forward

External loans

Bridging loans drawn down

Bridging loans repaid

Less Financing costs

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from bridging loan finance

Revolving crecdht drawn down
Revolving credit repaid

Net cash (outflow)/inflow of revolving credit finance
Deep discount bonds 1ssued

Deep discount bonds repaid

Less Fmancing costs

Net cash (outflow)/mflow from deep discount bonds

Unsecured bonds issued
Unsecured bonds repaid

Net cash (outflow)inflow from financng activities

{Decrease)/Increase 1 cash in the year/penod

Pertod from
25 November
Year ended 2004 to
30 September 30 September
2006 2005
£000 £000
415,290 (9,497
325,000 390,000
(546,763) (168,237)
(20,546) (10,710)
(242,309) 211,053
1,228 2,750
(2,818) (1,160}
(1,590) 1,590
- 196,606
{193,947) (2,659)
(15,595) (1,812)
(209,542) 192,135
- 2,581
2.581) -
{40,732) 397,862
24 {47,515 47967




. LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

- - CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
Year ended 30 September 2006
Year ended 30 Period from 25
September November 2004 to
2006 30 September 2005

Notes £000 £000
(Loss)/Profit for the year/period 21 (21,230) 29,040
Net surplus on revaluation of properties 21 175,049 174,429

Total recogmsed gains and losses for the year/period 153,819 203,469

CONSOLIDATED RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Year ended 30 September 2006

Year ended 30 Penod from 25
September November 2004 to
2006 30 September 2005

Notes £000 £000
Retained (loss)/profit for the year/period 21 (21,230) 29,040
Issue of share capital - 2
Net surplus on revaluation of properties 21 175,049 174,429
Net mcrease 1n shareholders’ funds 153,819 203471
Net increase followmng a reduction i munornity
interests’ shareholding 19 5,664 -
Shareholders’ funds at the beginning of year/period 203,471 -
Shareholders’ funds at end of year/period 362,954 203 471

CONSOLIDATED NOTE OF HISTORICAL COST PROFITS AND LOSSES
Year ended 30 September 2006
Year ended 30 Perod from 25
September November 2004 to
2006 30 September 2005

£000 £000
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation (21,188) 30,573
Historical cost (loss)profit on ordinary activities before

taxation (21,188) 30,573

Historical cost (loss)/profit retamed for the year/peniod (21,230) 29,040
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LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS - - - e e —
Year ended 30 September 2006

1.

Corporate restructuring

During the year the Group carried out a corporate restructuring including the mtroduction of a new parent
company, Libra CareCo Offshore Superholdco Limsted, mncorporated on 13 October 2005 Libra CareCo
Offshore Superholdco Limited indiwrectly acquired a 98 4% issued share capital of the former parent
company, Libra CareCo Holdings Limited The exchange 1s in the ratio of one Libra CareCo Offshore
Superholdco Limited ordinary shares of £0 01 each for each Libra CareCo Holdings Limited ordinary shares
of £0 01 each

On the basis that the acquisition was a share for share exchange and the restructuring represented a change 1n
identity of the parent company rather than an acquisition of a business, the Directors have considered that
merger accounting 1 more appropriate to present a true and fawr view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of 1ts results

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of accounting

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, and in accordance with all applicable Umted Kingdom law and
accounting standards The consohdated financial statements incorporate the financial statement of the
Company and its subsidiary undertakings for the year ended 30 September 2006 and the comparative figures
are for the pertod from 25 November 2004 to 30 September 2005 on the basis set out 1n note 1 A summary
of principal accounting policies, all of which have been applied consistently during the current year and the
previous period, 1s set out below

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, together
with those of Care Homes No 1 Limited (‘Care Homes 1'), Care Homes No 2 Limited (‘Care Homes 27)
and), Care Homes No 3 Limited {‘Care Homes 3"} Care Homes I, Care Homes 2 and Care Homes 3 are not
subsidiary undentakings of the Group, however, by reason of contractual arrangement between the Group and
Care Homes 1, Care Homes 2 and Care Homes 3, under FRS 5 ‘Reporting the Substance of Transactions’,
the financial statements of Care Homes 1, Care Homes 2 and Care Homes 3 are required to be consolidated
as part of the Group Summaries of the financial statements of Care Homes 1, Care Homes 2 and Care
Homes 3 are disclosed i notes 27 to 29 of the financial statements

Turnover

Turnover comprises the value of goods and services provided and 1s atiributable to the principal activity of
the Group

Valuation of land and building
Investment properties

The cost of mvestment properties 1s purchase ¢ost, any incidental costs of acquisition and the cost of capital
mnprovements Investment properties represent freehold and long leasehold properties held for long term
retention In accordance with SSAP No 19 ‘Accounting for Investment Properties’, these investment
properties are valued by the Dhrectors on a portfolio basis at Market Value In previous period, qualified
external valuers valued investment properties The aggregate revaluation surplus or deficit 15 transferred to
the revaluation reserve whilst any permanent dimimutton n value 15 charged to the profit and loss account

Other fixed assets — land and bmldings

The residential properties are held to provide accommodation to care employees of Southern Cross
Healthcare Group Limited and are recorded at cost at 30 September 2006

Capital expenditure on the investment properties portfolio assets

Capital expenditure incurred on a leased care home, which improves the physical condition above the level
required n the lease and which enhances the property’s value, 15 capitalised Otherwise such capatal
expenditure is charged to the profit and loss account
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-NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS - — -~ -

LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

Year ended 30 September 2006

2,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Valuation of land and building (continued)
Care homes under construction

Assets m the course of construction are carried i the accounts at cost The costs of construction include the
costs of financing the construction and other costs that are directly attributable to bringing the asset mto
working condition for its mtended use Capitalisation of finance and other costs normally cease at the date of
registration of the home On the completion date of registration of the care home on 2 March 2006, the total
costs of construction were reclasstfied to ‘mnvestment property’

The purchase cost of land whereby the development works were undertaken was reclassified to “investment
property’

Depreciation

In accordance with SSAP No 19, no depreciation 1s provided in respect of investment properties Under the

terms of the Group’s leases, freehold and long leasehold properties are required to be mamtamed to a high
standard by its tenants

The fact that no depreciation 1s provided mn respect of the mvestment properties 15 a departure from the
requiremnents of the Compames Act 1985, which requires all fixed assets to be depreciated over ther
effective useful lives However, such properties are not held for consumption, but for mvestment, and the
Directors consider that systematic depreciation would be mappropriate and would not give a true and far
view The accounting policy adapted and departure from the Compamies Act 1985 are therefore necessary for
the accounts to give a true and far view Depreciation 1s one of the factors reflected mn the annual
revaluation, and amounts, which might otherwise have been charged, cannot be separately identified or
quantified

Land and buildings within other fixed assets are depreciated m equal mstalments over the estimated useful
lives of each category of asset The amount of depreciation, the calculation of which 15 based on cost less
estimated residual value, 18 charged to the profit and loss account The estimated useful lives are as follows

Freechold land no depreciation

Freehold building 50 years

Other fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation, which 1s provided at rates calculated to write off the
cost m equal amounts over their anticipated useful lives as follows

Short leasehold improvements remaimning penod of lease

Office equipment and fixtures 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Care homes under construction no depreciation until completion

Investments and disposals
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less provision for any impawment 1n value

The profit or loss on disposal of investments ansing from the difference between the carrying amount of the
mvestment and the proceeds of sale was charged to the profit and loss account at the date of disposal

Business held for resale

In accordance with FRS 7 ‘Farr values in Acquisition Accounting’, the Group’s investment i Highfield Care
group, acquired through the acquisition of NHP Limited was held exclusively with a view to subsequent
resale Therefore, the mvestment s separately disclosed as business held for resale and recorded as a current
asset on the acquisition balance sheet of NHP Limited. The value attributed to Highfield Care group was fair
value, based on the net proceeds received from the subsequent resale The results of Highfield Care group
dunng the period of ownerships from 18 February 2005 to 8 April 2005 have been excluded from the
consohdated financial statements
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LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS - - - - - S
Year ended 30 September 2006

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 15 provided n full on iming differences which have ongmated at the balance sheet date and
which could give nise to an obligation to pay more or less tax in the future Deferred tax 1s measured at the
average tax rates that are expected to apply n the penods in which the timing differences are expected to
reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date Deferred tax 1s not recognised in respect of gains and losses on revalued assets unless the company has
entered 1nto a binding agreement to sell the assets and the gams or losses have been recogmsed in the profit
and loss account Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that 1t 1s regarded as more likely than not
that they will be recovered Deferred tax assets and habilities are not discounted

Secured Notes

The amount pad for the secured notes acquired from NHP Limited 15 recorded at cost The unwinding of fair
value adjustment of secured notes, the calculation of which 15 based on cost less redemption amount, 15
charged to the profit and loss account at a constant rate over the lives of the secured notes

Finance costs

Costs which are mcurred directly in connection with the raising of bank loans, secured notes, deep discount
bonds or unsecured bonds are amortised at a constant rate over the lives of the loan facility, secured notes,
deep discount or unsecured notes in accordance with FRS 4 ‘Capital Instruments’ The cost 1s written off
fully when the existing facility 1s cancelled

Interest

Interest receivable and interest payable are recogmsed m the financial statements on an accruals basis
Interest on Deposit Swap Agreement and Zero Coupon Bonds 1s capitalised on a monthly basis over their
respective lives Discount on secured notes, being interest paid in advance, are amortised over the hives of the
secured notes Discount on deep discount bonds, being the accrued interest, was cdpitahised on an annual
basis over the lives of the deep discount bonds Interest on unsecured bonds was accrued on a monthly basis
over the lives of the unsecured bonds

Leased assets

Rental paid under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on an accrual basis over the life
of the lease

Pension

The Group contributes to the personal pensions of their staff (including Directors) at rates of 10% to 20% of
basic salary, which 15 charged to the profit and loss account as incurred

A stakeholder pension scheme exists for all staff of the Libra CareCo Offshore Superholdco Limited Group
Financial mstruments

The Group uses derivative financial snstruments to reduce exposure to mterest rate movements n hine with
the Group’s nisk management policies The Group does not enter into dervative financial instruments for
speculative purposes Amounts payable or receivable in respect of the interest rate swaps are recognised as
adjustments to mnterest expense over the period of the contracts




LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

'NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS - - - - == - - -
Year ended 30 September 2006

3.

TURNOVER AND GROSS PROFIT

Turnover, which 15 stated net of value added tax, comprnises the followmng from the Group’s ordmary
activities, which take place wholly wathin the United Kingdom

Period from
25 November

Year ended 30 2004 to 30
September 2006 September 2005
£000 £000
Pavement rent 65,476 44,926
Tumover rent 981 1,703
Commissions and fees receivable 108 88
66,565 46,7117
STAFF COSTS
The aggregate payroll costs were as follows
Peniod from
25 November
Year ended 30 2004 to 30
September 2006  September 2005
Group £000 £000
Wages and salaries 1,443 1,240
Termunation payments* - cash 294 1,110
1 101
Social secunity costs ** 184 1830
Pension — defined contmbution 274 116
2,196 2,747

* Termmnation payments n respect of the Group’s restructuring following the acquisition 1 2005 of NHP
Limited (formerly NHF Plc) have been disclosed under note 5 ‘Exceptional costs’

** Includes social secunty costs mcurred on termination payments of £8,000 (period ended 30 September
2005 £118,000).

All the current Directors receive therr emoluments from Walkers SPV Limited, who m tumn has a corporate
services agreement signed with the Company and the Group for the provision of directors and secretarial
services The total fees charged for these services to the Group for the current year were £14,000 (2005
£14,000) The fees charged to the Company for the current year were £4,667 (2005 £4,667)

Company

There are no staff costs mcurred by the Company during the current year or n the preceding period All staff
costs have been borne by NHP Management Limited, a group undertaking

Period from

. Year ended 30 15 Novembher

Average number of employees (including Directors): September 2004 to 30
2006 September 2005

Group No. No.
Administrative 12 19
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LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS - - - S-S Tt T T o
Year ended 30 September 2006
5. EXCEPTIONAL COSTS
The following exceptional costs have been mcurred or provided for and are included in total admmmstrative
expenses
Period from 25
November 2004
Year ended 30 to 30 September
September 2006 2005
£000 £000
Termmation payments* 195 1,329
Loyalty payment to employees* 369 102
Group restructuring costs* 6,509 -
Cost of abortive deals 309 58
7,882 1,489
Tax effect nil nil
* All costs incurred are related to various corporate restructuring activities
6. OPERATING PROFIT
Group operating profit 1s amved after charging
Period from 25
November 2004
Year ended 30  to 30 September
September 2006 2005
£000 £000
Deprecration of other fixed assets 45 50
Operating lease rentals - buildings 137 8S
Auditors’ remuneranon (includmg VAT)
- Auditors’ remuneration - Group audit 119 105
- Company audit 20 15
- Auditing accounts of subsidiartes pursuant to regulations 9 7
- Tax services 118 72
- Other services* 5 -

* relate to VAT advisory services

In addition to the above, the following amounts have been paid to the Group auditors in respect of the stated
group taxation services for the year ended 30 September 2006

(a) £300,000 was mcurred 1n respect of tax opinion given on a group restructuning mcluding the introduction
of new parent undertakings This amount 15 reported within ‘Exceptional costs’ in note 5,

(b) £358,373 (including VAT) was mcurred 1 respect of tax opinion given on a new refinancing undertaken
by new corporate entities. This amount 15 reported within bank ‘finance costs’ in note 9

The amounts (including VAT) paid to the Group auditors i respect of group taxation services for the year
ended 30 September 2005 15 as follows

(a) £353,000 was mcurred n respect of the sale of mvestment mn Southern Cross EquityCo Limited This
amount had been set off against the loss on disposal of investment referred to 1n note 8

(b) £840,000 was incurred in respect of the sale of investments in Highfield Care group This amount had
been set off against the proceeds recerved from the business held for resale

(c) £275,000 was incurred 1n respect of the sale of properttes This amount had been set off against the profit
on tisposal of tangible fixed assets

(d) Libra CareCo Limited (formerly ‘TBG CareCo Limited’) incurred £529,000 m respect of the NHP
acquisition This amount had been capitalised i the acquisition costs of that company
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LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

_ NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS - - - L
Year ended 30 September 2006

7 SHARE OF ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKING’S OPERATING PROFIT

Period from 25
Year ended 30 November 2004
September to 30 September

2006 2005
£000 £000

Share of associated undertaking’s operating profit 31 23

8. NET LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENTS

Period from
Year ended 30 25 November 2004
September  to 30 September

2006 2005
Group £000 £000

Loss on disposal of investinents 562 144

e ———

On 2 March 2006 NHP Limtted sold its 25 01% shareholding in G R Patrick & Co Limited, the principal
activity of which was that of an insurance brokerage speciahising in healthcare

On 6 May 2005, Libra CareCo Investments 1 Limited (formerly ‘TBG CareCo Investments 1 Limted’)
disposed of a 30% shareholding mn Southern Cross EquityCo Limuted,
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LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

-NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS -~ - ) I i
Year ended 30 September 2006

9. NET INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES

Pertod from

25 November
Year ended 30 2004 to 30
September 2006  September 2005
Group 5000 £000
Interest receivable
Interest receivable on deposits 1,152 911
Interest recervable - loan to Southern Cross Healthcare Group
Limited group 255 235
Interest receivable - outstanding sales ledger balances of Southern
Cross Healthcare Group Lirmited group - 675
Other interest receivable 166 153
Interest receivable from Deposit Swap Agreements and Zero
Coupon Notes 8,258 5,046
Unwinding of fair value adjustment of secured notes 3,829 2,359
Associates
Interest receivable 7 18
13,667 9,397
Interest payable:
Interest payable on bank loans (9,100) (15,452)
Interest payable on secured notes (37,347) (22,958)
Interest payable on non-secured bonds 27) (117)
Interest payable - loan from Southern Cross Healthcare Group
Limated group - (425)
Interest payable — loan from Libra No 3 Limuted (15,699) -
Other mnterest payable (258) 43}
Amortisahon of discount and 1ssue costs on deep discount bonds (5,311) (12,392
Amortisation of discount and 1ssue costs on secured notes (1,134) 79
Fmance costs * (22,014) (10,412)
Associates
Interest payable 3) N
(90,893) (62,483)
Net interest payable and similar charges (77,226) (53,086)

* Finance costs include an amount of £266,000 (2005 £7,326,000) charged to the profit and loss account
based on a change mn facility penod following a replacement of an old facility with a new facility agreement
dated 17 October 2005 The new facility was terminated on 3 March 2006 resulting a further amount wntten
off of £6,260,000 (2005 £ml) The Group was required to pay £14,646,000 (2005 £ml) breakage fees on
early termmation of the two nterest rate swap agreements on 17 QOctober 2005 This amount has further been
included within finance costs
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LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS .- - - - - -
Year ended 30 September 2006

10. TAX CHARGE ON (LOSS)PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

11,

Group
Corporation tax
Income tax

Current tax charge
Share of assotiate’s tax

Total current tax charge
Deferred tax charge/(credit)

Total current tax charge -
Income tax — prior years

Total tax charge on profit on ordinary activities

Effective tax rate

Reconcihation of current tax charge

(Loss)/Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Tax on (loss)/profit at standard rate of 30%
Factors affecting the change

Non-taxable mcome

Nen deductible expenses

Capital allowances for period m excess of depreciation

Loss/(Profit) on disposals
Chargeable gains

Utilisation of brought forward losses
Permanent iming differences
Dhfferences i tax rate

Increase mn losses carried forward

Group tax charge for the current year/period

PARENT COMPANY PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Loss for the financial year, mcluding dividends from
subsidiary undertakings, after taxation

Year ended 30
September 2006
£000

344

344

344
84

428
(17

411

Year ended 30
September 2006
000

(21,188)
(6,357)

(3,044)
2,885
(2,246)
206
310
a71)

(903)
9,664

344

Period from

25 November 2004
to 30 September

2005
£000

104
151

235
29

284
84)

200

200

1%

Perod from

25 November 2004

to 30 September
2005
£000

30,573

5,172

(2.127)
(12,286)
1,956
(842)
(354)
(280)
5,045

284

Year ended 30
September 2006
£000

(3,793)

_———==

The Company has taken the advantage of section 230 of the Compames Act 1985 and consequently a profit

and loss account for the Company alone 1s not presented
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LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS oo - -
Year ended 30 September 2006
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Investment properties Freehold Long
mvestment leasehold
properties mvestment
properties Total
Group £000 £000 £000
Cost ar valuation
At 1 October 2005 989,259 25,741 1,015,000
Adjustments — on acquisition of NHP Limated 1n prior period * (2,001) - (2,001)
Additions at cost 588 10 598
Reclassification from other fixed assets ‘care homes under
construction’ 5,565 - 5,565
Net surplus on revaluation
- attributable to the Group 169,634 5415 175,049
- attnbutable to minority interests 765 24 789
At 30 September 2006 1,163,810 31,190 1,195,000

*relate to the restatement of net assets acquired from NHP Limited at 18 February 2005 m accordance with
FRS 7 *Acqusttion accounting’

The notional apportionment of value between freehold imvestment properties and long leasehold mnvestment
properties has been calculated by the Directors according to the ratios of the pavement rents of the underlying
assets

Investment properties were valued at 30 September 2006 by the Directors (2005 Gerald Eve, National
Property Advisors) on the basis of Market Value on a portfolio basts in accordance with the Appraisal and
Valuation Standards published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
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LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERBHOLDCO LIMITED

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

Other fixed assets

Group

Cost or valuation

At 1 October 2005

Reclassification from
accumulated depreciation

Adjustments

Additions at cost

Disposals

Reclassification to mvestment
properties at cost

At 30 September 2006

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 October 2005
Reclassification to cost
Adjustments

Charge for the year
Disposals

At 30 September 2006

Net book value
At 30 September 2006

At 30 September 2005

Office
Freehold Short equipment, Care homes
Land and leasehold fixtures and Motor under
buildings improvements fittings  vehicles construction Tota
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £001
742 3 80 62 4,279 5,16
- - - 16 - 1
- : - (1) - (
- - 1 - 1,286 1,28
- - “7 (62) - (o
- - - - (5,565) (5,56
742 3 34 15 - 79¢
(6) - (20 (24) - (8¢
. - . (16) - (1
- - - 3) - (¢
(I (n (23) (10) - (4
- - 36 39 - 7
(17 ¢y (7) 14 - (3
725 2 27 1 - 75
736 3 60 338 4,279 5,11

The costs of care home under construction incurred were m respect of the development of an 80 bed care home
The costs of construction mclude a retention amount of £42,000 (2005 £70,000) The capitalised mterest for th
year ended 3G September 2006 was £120,000 (2005 £133,000) At the date of registration of the care home on :
March 2006 the costs of construction were transferred to investment property

At 30 September 2006 the Company had contracted capital commitments not completed or accrued of £ail (2005

£1,325,000)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS .~ _ _ _ Lo - -
Year ended 30 September 2006
13. INVESTMENTS
Care Care Care
Homes 1 Homes2 Homes3
Deposit Deposit Zero  Investment Loan notes to
Swap Swap Coupon in associated related group
Agreement Agreement Notes undertaking undertaking Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 October 2005 47,920 79,270 43,106 486 9,499 180,281
Accumulated compound
interest for the year 2,331 3,862 2,065 - - 8,258
Retamed profit for the period
from 1 October 2005 to 2
March 2006 - - - 37 - 37
Cost of exercised Call Option - - - 15 - 15
Disposal - - - (538) (9,499) (10,037)
At 30 September 2006 50,251 83,132 45,171 - - 178,554

Care Homes Deposit Swap Agreements and Zero Coupon Notes
Care Homes 1 Deposit Swap Agreement

The Deposit Swap Agreement of £50 25 milhon represents the premium paid by Care Homes 1 Limited of
£46 49 million 1n respect of an AAA rated Deposit Swap Agreement with General Re Fimancial Products
Corporation, which together with accumulated interest of £3 76 million, guarantees to provide for the
repayment of £121 80 muliron (or £100 0 million at nominal value) Class Al and Class A2 Secured Notes n
2021 The mark to market valuation of the Deposit Swap Agreement at 30 September 2006 15 disclosed m
note 27

On 17 November 2006, Care Homes 1 terminated its AAA rated Swap Deposit Agreement with General Re
Fmancial Product Corporation at terminated value of £54 48 million The full amount was deposited m a
General Investment Deposit Contract with The Royal Bank of Scotland plc on 17 November 2006 at
compounded nterest rate of 4 220140% per annum, which guaranteed to provide for the repayment of the
£121 80 mullion (the nommnal value of which 1s £100 0 million) Secured Notes i April 2021

On 4 December 2006 Care Homes 1 termmated its General Investment Deposit Contract with The Royal
Bank of Scotland plc and received an amount of £54 59 milhion The entire amount has been utihsed towards
the repayment of the Secured Notes on 4 December 2006 as disclosed m note 32 (k)

Care Homes 2 Deposit Swap Agreement

The Deposit Swap Agreement of £83 13 mullion represents the premum paid by Care Homes 2 of £76 95
million i respect of an AAA rated Deposit Swap Agreement with General Re Fmancial Products
Corporation, which together with accumulated mterest of £6 18 mulhion, guarantees to provide for the
repayment of £193 21 muthion (the nomnal value of which 1s £180 0 mullion) Class A Secured Notes i 2023
The mark to market valuation of the Deposit Swap Agreement at 30 September 2006 15 disclosed in note 28

On 17 November 2006, Care Homes 2 termmated 1ts AAA rated Swap Deposit Agreement with General Re
Fmancial Product Corporation at terminated value of £82 37 million The full amount was deposited m a
General Investment Deposit Contract with The Royal Bank of Scotland ple on 17 November 2006 at
compounded interest rate of 4 812011% per annum, which guaranteed to provide for the repayment of the
£193 21 milhon (the nominal value of which 1s £128.0 nullion) Class A Secured Notes i February 2023

On 4 December 2006 Care Homes 2 termunated ts General Investment Deposit Contract with The Royal

Bank of Scotland plc and received amount of £82 55 million The entire amount has been utilised towards
the repayment of the Secured Notes on 4 December 2006 as disclosed m note 32 (k)
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LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

INVESTMENTS (continued)

Care Homes Deposit Swap Agreements and Zero Coupon Notes (Continued)
Care Homes 3 Zero Coupon Notes

The Zero Coupon Notes of £45 17 million represents the consideration paid by Care Homes 3 of £41 81
milhon n respect of AAA rate Zero Coupon Notes 1ssued by Ewropean Investment Bank, which together
with accumulated interest of £3 36 million, guarantee to provide for the repayment of £146 91 million (or
£128 0 million at nominal value) Class A Secured Notes in 2028 The mark to market valuation of the Zero
Coupon Notes at 30 September 2006 1s disclosed 1n note 29

On 17 November 2006, Care Homes 3 terminated its AAA rated Zero Coupon Notes 1ssued by European
Investment Bank at termmated value of £50 79 million The full amount was depesited m a General
Investment Depostt Contract with The Royal Bank of Scotland plc on 17 November 2006 at compounded
interest rate of 4 186857% per annum, which guaranteed to provide for the repayment of the £146 91 mallion
(or £128 0 million at nominal value) Class A Secured Notes in December 2028

On 4 December 2006 Care Homes 3 terminated its General Investment Deposit Contract with The Royal
Bank of Scotland plc and recerved amount of £50 8% million The entire amount has been utilised towards
the repayment of the Secured Notes on 4 December 2006 as disclosed in note 32 (k)

Investment in associated undertaking

G R Patnck & Co Limited represents a 25 01% shareholding in that company, the principal activity of
which was that of an mnsurance brokerage specialising m healthcare

The Company exercised the Call Option to purchase the 310 and 15,201 option shares for a price of £15,000
from the two directors of GR Patrick & Co Limted, thereby mcreased its shareholding of the Company
from 9 50% at 30 September 2005 to 25 01% on 1 December 2005

On 2 March 2006, the Company disposed of the entire 25 01% shareholding in G R. Patrick & Co Limited
for £25,000

Loan notes to related group undertaking

A loan note of £9,499,000 was 1ssued to Southern Cross Investments No 2 Lumited, a care home operator
who was formerly a related group undertaking ultimately owned by the funds admimstered by The
Blackstone Group The loan was to enable that company to repay amounts owed to Care Homes 1, Care
Homes 2 and Care Homes 3 Limited The loan notes bear interest at base rate plus 2% per annum

Followmng the acquisition by The Royal Bank of Scotland plc of 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Libra
CareCo Offshore Superholdco Limited from the funds administered by The Blackstone Group, the loan notes
were fully repaid on 3 March 2006

Company
2006
£000
At 13 October 2005 -
Shares m Libra CareCo Offshore TopCo Limited (formerly ‘TBG
CareCo Cffshore TopCo Limited”) 2
Shares in Libra CareCo CH3 PropCo HoldCo Limited (formerly ‘TBG
CareCo CH3 PropCo HoldCo Limited’) -
At 30 September 2006 2
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Year ended 30 September 2006

13, INVESTMENTS (continued)
At 30 September 2006, the Company held mvestments either directly or indirectly in the followmng subsidiary

undertakings.
Country of %
Name mcorporation _Holdmgs  Principal activity
Subsidiary undertakings
Libra CareCo Offshore TopCo
Limited (formerly ‘TBG CareCo Cayman Investment company in group undertaking with
Offshore TopCo Limited’)* Islands 100% 1nvestment m care homes properties
Libra CareCo Offshore Equity Co
Limited (formerly ‘TBG CareCo Cayman Investment company m group undertaking with
Cffshore Equity Co Limited”) Islands 100% 1nvestment in care homes properties
Libra CareCo CH2 PropCo HoldCo
Limited (formerly ‘Libra CareCo Investment company tn group undertaking with
CH2 PropCo HoldCo Limited’) Great Britamn 100% mvestment n care homes properties
Libra CareCo CH2 PropCo Limited
(formerly ‘Libra CareCo CH2 Investment company 1n group undertakmg with
PropCo Limted") Great Britain 100%  mvestment m care homes properties
Libra CareCo CH3 PropCo HoldCo
Limited (formerly ‘Libra CareCo Investment company in group undertaking with
CH3 PropCoe HoldCo Laimated”) Great Britain 100%  investment i care homes properties
Libra CareCo CH3 PropCo Limited
(formerly ‘Libra CareCo CH3 Investment company 1n group undertaking with
PropCo Limited’) Great Britain 100% investment m care homes properties
Libra CareCo Holdings Limited
(formerly ‘TBG CareCo Holdings Investment company 1n group undertaking with
Limited”) Great Britain 98 4% Investment in care homes properties
Libra CareCo Investments | Limited
(formerly ‘TBG CareCo Investments
1 Limated") Great Britamn 100%  Parent company of Libra Investments 2 Limited
Libra CareCo Investments 2 Limited
{formerly “TBG CareCo Investments Parent company of Libra CareCo Limited and
2 Limted’) Great Britam 100%  Libra GuaranteeCo Limited
Libra GuaranteeCo Limited
(formerly ‘TBG GuaranteeCo Investment company wn group undertakmg with
Limited”) Great Britamn 100% investment n care home properties
Libra CareCo Lumated (formerly
“TBG CareCo Limited’) Great Britain 100%  Parent company of NHP Limited

Parent company of subsidiary undertakings with
NHP Limited Great Britamn 100%  tnvestment 1 care home properties
NHP Securities No 1 Limited Great Britamn 100% Investment i care home properties
NHP Secunities No 2 Limited Great Britain 100%  Investment in care home properties
NHP Securities No 3 Limited Great Brnitamn 100%  Investment in care home properties
NHP Securities No 4 Limated Great Bntain 100%  Partmer tn LLNHP Partnership
NHP Securities No 6 Limited Great Britamn 100% Investment i care home properties

Investment i overnding leases of care home
NHP Securities No 9 Limited Jersey 100% properties
NHP Securities No 11 Limited Jersey 100%  Parent company of NHP Securities No 9 Limited
NHP Management Limited Great Britamn 100% Management of care home property portfolios
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Year ended 30 September 2006

13. INVESTMENTS (continued)
Subsidiary undertakings (Continued)

Country of %
Name mcorporation  Holdings
NHP Operations (York) Lumted Great Britain 100%
LLNH Limited Great Britain 100%
Ultima Holdings Limited Great Britain 100%
Ultima Healthcare Limited Great Britam 100%
Eton Hall Homes Lumited Great Britain 100%
Ultima Care Limited Great Britain 100%
Platinum Healthcare Limited Great Britain 100%

Prncipal activity

Care home property development

Partner in LLHNP Partnership
Immedate parent company of Ulima Group

undertakings

Care home operator
Care home operator
Care home operator
Care home operator

* held directly by Libra CareCo Offshore Superholdco Limited All others are held mdirectly by the subsidiaries of
Libra CareCo Offshore Superholdeco Limited

On | December 2006, the following acquisitions took place

a) NHP Securities No | Lumited acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Care Homes No I Limaited, a

b)

14.

company mcorporated and registered in the Cayman Islands,

Libra CareCo CH2 PropCo Limited acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Care Homes No. 2
Limited, a company mcorporated and registered in the Cayman Islands Care Homes No 2 Limted has m
turn owned 100% 1ssued ‘A’ and ‘B’ ordinary shares of £1 each in NHP Securities No. 5 Limited and NHP

Secunties No 8 Limited,

Libra CareCo CH3 PropCo Limited acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Care Homes No 3
Limited, a company mcorporated and registered in the Cayman Islands Care Homes No 3 Limited has in
turn owned 100% 1ssued ‘A’ and ‘B’ ordinary shares of £1 each n NHP Securiies No 10 Limited and

100% 1ssued share capital of NHP Securities No 12 Limited

DEBTORS

Group

Trade debtors

Other debtors

Corporation tax

Deferred tax asset (note 18)

Amount due from Libra No 3 Limited

Amount dve from Southern Cross Healthcare Group Limited group

Prepayments and accrued mcome

Company
Prepayments and accrued income

2006 2005
£000 £000
105 7
20 92
1,441 45
. 84
5,500 .
- 6,487
212 1,950
7,278 8,730
2006

£000

2
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15.

16.

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
2006 2005
Group £000 £000
Short term deposits held by Care Homes 1 7,869 7,830
Short term deposits held by Care Homes 2 2,630 3,915
Short term deposits held by Care Homes 3 6,000 5,800
16,499 17,545

At 30 September 2006 £3,644,000 of the short term deposits in Care Homes 1 was reserved to meet interest
and other habihties The remainder of the short term deposits 1 Care Homes 1, 2 and 3 were required to meet
short term interest on Secured Notes As of 4 December 2006, the reserved amount was no longer required
following the novation of Secured Notes on that date (see note 32 (k)}

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2006 2005
Group £000 £000
Revolving credit facality draw down (see below) - 1,590
Bank overdrafis - 63
Interest payable — secured notes 9,836 9,753
Interest payable — bank loans - 41
Interest payable — Libra No 3 Lumited 1,449 -
Other creditors 163 2,370
Taxation and social secunty 28 154
Corporation tax 2 1,549
Income tax 113 1,713
Amounts due to Libra No 3 Limited 4 007 -
Amount due to Southern Cross Healthcare Group Limited group - 971
Accruals and deferred mcome 1 3,178

16,309 21,382

At 30 September 2005, £1,590,000 was drawn down on the £10 million revolving credit facility entered mto
with Barclays Bank PL.C and Citibank N A London on 29 November 2004 (as amended on 29 September
2005) This loan was due to mature on 17 February 2010 and bears interest at LIBOR plus 2% per annum
The revolving credit facality had been replaced with a £2 million facility within a new £327 million factlity
agreement dated 17 October 2005 The maturity of the revolving facihity was on 17 February 2007 and bears
mterest rate at LIBOR plus 2% per annum Following the acqusition by Libra No 3 Limited, a subsidiary
undertaking of The Royal Bank of Scotland plc on 3 March 2006, the revolving facility was cancelled

2006
Company £000
Amounts due to Libra No 3 Limited 3,780
Amounts due to other group undertakings 15

3,795
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17

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

Group

Bridging loans due between two and five years

Less Unamortised finance costs

Class Al Secured 8% Notes due 2021
Class A2 Secured 8 5% Notes due 2021
Unwinding of fair value adjustment
Less. Unamortised 1ssue costs
Unamortised discount on 1ssue

Net Secured Notes — Care Homes |

Class A Secured 5 75% Notes due 2023
Class M Secured 6 65% Notes due 2005
Class B Secured 7 65% Notes due 2025
Unwinding of farr value adjustment
Less Unamortised issue costs
Unamortised discount on i1ssue

Net Secured Notes — Care Homes 2

Class A Secured 6 125% Notes due 2028

Class M Secured 7 125% Notes due 2030

Class B Secured 8 25% Notes due 2030

Unwindmg of fair value adjustment

Less Unamortised 1ssue costs
Unamortised discount on 1ssue

Net Secured Notes — Care Homes 3

Deep Discount Bonds 10% due 2015
Less Unamortised issue costs

Unamortised discount on 1ssue
Net Deep Discount Bonds

Unsecured bonds 10% due 2015
Rolled up mnterest

Unsecured bonds

Loan notes due to Libra No 3 Limited

2006 2005
£000 £000

- 221,763

- (266)

- 221,497
78,648 78,648
43,152 43,152
(2,202) (839)
(1,741) (1,862)
(466) (498)
117,391 118,601
193,212 193,212
67,152 67,152
28,192 28,192
(1,668) (636)
(5,124) (5,436)
(361) (384)
281,403 282,100
146,905 146,905
51,370 51,370
29,933 29,933
(2,318) (884)
(13,335) (13,922)
(1,963) (2,022)
210,592 211,380
. 503,199
- (1,697)
- (297,271)

- 204,231

. 2,581

- 117

- 2,698
405,791 -
1,015,177 1,040,507
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17.

CREDITORS. AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR (continued)
Bridging loans

At 30 September 2005, a £221,763,000 bndging loan was fully drawn on the term loan facility within the
bridging loan facility agreement dated 29 November 2004 (as amended on 29 September 2005), entered mto
with Barclays Bank Plc and Citibank N A London. The bridging loan was due to mature on 17 February
2010 and bears mterest at LIBOR plus 2% The facility was secured by a fixed and floating charge on group
assets and unhimted goaraniee from its group undertakings The facihty had been svbsequently cancelled
followmng a replacement by a new facility agreement on 17 October 2005 The new facihity agreement was
for £327 mulhion, which made up of a £325 milhion term loan and £2 mullion revolving credit facility entered

mto with Barclays Bank Plc, Cititbank N A London, Prudential Finance (UK) Plc and The Royal Bank of
Scotland ple

On 3 March 2006 the Group cancelled the entire facility of £327 mllion following the acquisition by Libra
No 3 Lumted

The Group entered nto an interest rate swap agreement for £222 milhon notional value of which, £111m was
with Barclays Bank PLC and £111m with Cihbank N A London The interest rate swap had a matunity date
on 18 February 2030 and fixed interest rate at 3 month LIBOR of 4 §9% per annum

On 17 October 2005, the Group entered mnto a further interest rate swap contract for a notional value of
£103m of which, £51 5m was with Barclays Bank Plc and £51 Sm with Citibank N A London The new

interest swap contract had a maturity date on 18 February 2010 and fixed interest rate at three month LIBOR
of 4 708% per annum

The intentions of the interest rate swaps were to fix the interest rates on the term loan facihity.

Cn 3 March 2006, the Group cancelled all the wterest rate swap agreements followmg the acquisition by
Libra No 3 Limited

Secured Notes

The Care Homes 1 Secured Notes are non-recourse to the Company and its group undertakings, and were
secured, mter alia, by charges over the overridmg leases and the rents recervable thereunder, over the Deposit
Swap Agreement with General Re Financial Products Corporation, which at 30 September 2006 amounted to
£50,251,000 mcluding accrued mterest (see note 13), and over the cash and short term ivestment balances,
which at 30 September 2006 amounted to £7,869,000

On 4 December 2006, the Care Homes 1 redeemed the entre £121,800,000 Secured Notes, due 9 April 2021
at market value of £138,404,000 as dasclosed m note 32 (k).

The Care Homes 2 Secured Notes are non-recourse to the Company and its group undertakings, and were
secured, nter alia, by charges over the overriding leases and the rents recervable thereunder, over the Deposit
Swap Agreement with General Re Financial Products Corporation, which at 30 September 2006 amounted to
£83,132,000 mcluding accrued interest (see note 13), and over the cash and short term imvestment balances,
which at 30 September 2006 amounted to £2,630,000

On 4 December 2006, Care Homes 2 redeemed the entire £288,556,000 Secured Notes due 15 February 2003
and 15 February 2025 at market value of £320,712,000 as disclosed n note 32 (k)

The Care Homes 3 Secured Notes are non-recourse to the Company and its group undertakings, and were
secured, inter alia, by charges aver the averridng leases and the rents receivable thereunder, over the Zero
Coupon Notes with European Investment Bank, which at 3¢ September 2006 amounted to £45,171,000
mcluding accreed nterest (see note 13), and over the cash and short term investment balances, which at 30
September 2006 amounted to £6,000,000

On 4 December 2006, Care Homes 3 redeemed the entire £228,208,000 Secured Notes due 15 December
2028 and 15 December 2030 at market value of £260,971,000 as disclosed 1 note 32 (k).
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17.

18,

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR (continued)
Deep Discount Bonds

The deep discount bonds 10% 2015 were unconditional unsecured debt and rank pari passu among
themselves

As at 30 September 2006, the deep discount bonds held by funds admuustered by The Blackstone Group at
nominal value were redeemed as follows

At 1 October 2005 Repayment At September 2006
£000 £000 £000
BCP (Cayman) IV LP 254,265 (254,265) -
BCP (Cayman) IV A LP 4,028 (4,028) -
BFI (Cayman) IV A LP 11,971 (11,971) -
BPP (Cayman) IV LP 700 (700) -
BREP (Alberta) IV LP 30,010 (30,010) -
BREP (Alberta) IV TE 1 LP 10,652 {10,652) -
BREP (Alberta) IVTE2 LP 19,290 (19,290) -
BREP (Alberta) IVTE 3 ALP 17,231 (17,231) -
BREP (Alberta) IVF LP 10,492 (10,492) -
BREH (Alberta) IV LP 5,218 (5,218) -
BREP International IE LP 65,263 (65,263) -
BREP International IC LP 30,673 (30,673) -
BREP International ID LP 36,008 (36,008) -
BREH International A LP 5,718 (5,718) -
BREH International B LP 1,680 (1,680) -
503,199 (503,199 -

s o e ]

On 20 October 2005 £314,518,000 deep discount bonds at nominal value were redeemed and the remaining
deep discount bonds at nommwnal value of £188,681,301 were redeemed on 3 March 2006, the date of
acquisition by Libra No 3 Limited

Unameortised 1ssue costs were wnitten off fully following the redemption
Unsecured bonds

The unsecured bonds were 1ssued to management for £1,925,000 and £656,000 on 8 Apnl 2005 and 19 May

2005 respectively The maturity date of the unsecured bonds was 10 years from the date of 1ssue and they
bear mterest at 10% per annum

On 4 November 2005, £1,285,000 and £408,000 of the unsecured notes 1ssued on § April 2005 and 19 May

2005 were redeemed respectively The remaining outstanding amount was redeemed from a loan from Libra
No 3 Limited on 3 March 2006

DEFERRED TAXATION
Group Provided Unprovided
2006 2005 2006 2005
£000 £000 £000 £000
Accelerated depreciation over capital allowances - 84 300 -
Losses - - 14,030 -
Short term timing differences - - - 5,045
Revaluation of investment properties - - (119,526) (120,315

. 84 (105,196)  (115.270)
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18.

19.

20.

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The value of assets qualifying for capital allowances to be used in the calculation of deferred tax 15 an
apportionment of the total portfolio value

The deferred tax Liability on the potential capital gamn ansmg mm relation to the revalued freeholds of
£119,526,000 (2005 £120,315,000) 1s not recopnised as the Group has no intention to sell these properties at
this ttime and there 1s no binding agreement to dispose of them

Company
There 15 no provided or unprownided deferred tax m respect of the Company
MINORITY INTEREST
2006

Group £000
At 1 October 2005 9,342
Loss on ordinary activities after taxation (369)
Net surplus on revaluation of properties 789
Disposals* (see note 21) (5,664)

4,098

* relates to a reduction in the shareholding 1 Libra CareCo Holdings Lumited, the former parent company
from 4 39% to 1 62% from 3 March 2006

CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

2006 2005
Company £000 £000
Authorised
2,500,000 ordinary shares at 1 p each 25 25
Called, allotted and fully paid:
207,589 ordinary shares at 1p each 2 2

Authorsed and 15sued share capital 15 shown on a pro forma basis for 2005

Pursvant to the First Rollover Agreement on 14 October 2005 Libra CareCo Equity Co Limited 1ssued
201,741 ordmary shares at £0 01 each to the funds held by The Blackstone Group 1n exchange of their entire
holding of shares in Libra CareCo Holdings Limited, i the ratio of one Libra CareCo Offshore Equity Co
Limited ordinary share of £0 01 each for each Libra CareCo Holdings Limited ordinary share of £0 01 each
Immediately following the completion of the First Rollover Agreement, the funds held by The Blackstone
Group agreed to exchange their entire holdng of shares in Libra CareCo Offshore Equnty Co Limited for
shares m Libra CareCo Offshore TopCo Limited m the ratio of one Libra CareCo Offshore TopCo Limited
ordimnary share of £0 01 each for each Libra CareCo Offshore Equity Co Limited ordmnary share of £0 01
each This agreement 1s set out i the Second Rollover Agreement

Immediately following the completion of the Second Rollover Agreement, the funds held by The Blackstone
Group agreed to exchange their entire holding of shares 1n Libra CareCo Offshore TopCo Limited for shares
mn Libra CareCo Offshore SuperholdCo Limited n the ratio of one Libra CareCo Offshore SuperholdCo
Lirnited ordmnary share of £0 01 each for each Libra CareCo Offshore TopCo Limited ordmary share of £0 01
each This agreement 15 set out n the Third Rollover Agreement
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20.

21.

22

23

CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Pursuant to the Fust Rollover Agreement on 3 March 2006, mmnority interest holders of 5,848 ordinary shares
of £0 01 each i Libra CareCo Holdings Limuted agreed to exchange thewr holdngs for shares i Libra
CareCo Offshore Equity Co Limited ordmary shares in the ratio of one Libra CareCo Offshore Equity Co
Limited ordinary share of £0 01 each for each Libra CareCo Holdings Lymited ordinary share of £0 01 each

Immediately followmng the completion of the Furst Rollover Agreement, the mimonty mterest holders agreed
to exchange their entire holdmg of shares in Libra CareCo Offshore Equity Co Limiated for shares in Libra
CareCo Offshore TopCo Limited in the ratio of one Libra CareCo Offshore TopCo Limited ordmary share of
£0 01 each for each Libra CareCo Offshore Equity Co Limited ordinary share of £0 01 each This agreement
15 set out in the Second Rollover Agreement A Third Rollover Agreement 15 effected upon completion of the
Second Rollover Agreement whereby the minonty tnterest holders agreed to exchange their entire holding of
shares in Labra CareCo Offshore TopCo Limited for shares i Libra CareCo Offshore SuperholdCo Limited
1n the ratio of one Libra CareCo Offshore SuperholdCo Limited ordinary share of £0 01 each for each Libra
CareCo Offshore TopCo Lunited ordinary share of £0 01 each

On 3 March 2006, Libra No 3 Limited acquired the entire 1ssued 207,589 ordinary shares of £0 01 each of

the Company and the remaining 1ssued 3,411 ordinary shares of £0 01 each of Libra CareCo Holdmgs
Lumited

RESERVES
Profit
Revaluation and loss
reserve account
Group £000 £000
At 1 October 2005 174,429 29,040
Net increase following a reduction i minonty
interests’ shareholding 5,053 611
Net surplus on revaluation of properties 175,049 -
Retamned loss for the year - (21,230)
At 30 September 2006 354,531 8,421
MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
2005
Company £000
At 13 October 2005 -
Issue of share capital 2
Retained loss for the pertod (3,793)
At 30 September 2006 (3,791)
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO OPERATING CASH FLOW
2006 2005
£000 £000
Operating profit 56,758 42,705
Share of associated undertaking’s operating profit €3))] (23)
Depreciatton of other fixed assets 45 50
Decrease 1n debtors 1,129 25,421
Decrease in creditors (1,106) (7,194)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 36,795 60,959
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24, ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT
At 30 At 30
September Non-cash  September
2005 Cash flow changes* 2006
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and i hand 48,030 (47,578) - 452
Bank overdraft (63) 63 - -
Net cash at bank and i hand 47,967 (47,515) - 452
Short term investments 17,545 (1,046) - 16,499
Loan notes to Southern Cross Healthcare
Group Limited 9.499 (9,499) - -
Loan notes from Libra No 3 Limited - (405,791) - (405,791)
Revolving credit facility draw down {1,590) 1,590 - -
Bndging loans due afier one year (221,497 242,309 (20,812) -
Secured Notes (net of unamortised 1ssue
and discount costs) (612,081) - 2,695 (609,386)
Deep Discount Bonds (net of
unamortised 1ssue and discount costs) (204,231} 209,542 (5,311) -
Unsecured bonds (2,698) 2,581 117 -
(967,086) (7,829) (23,311 (998,226)
* Non-cash changes relate to financmg costs
25. RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT
2006 2005
£000 £000
{Decrease)/Increase n cash during the period (47,515) 47,967
Net cash outflow/(inflow) from debt financing activities 456,022 (407,359)
Net cash (inflow)/outflow from the 1ssue on loan notes (415,250) 9,499
Net cash inflow from management of liquid resources (1,046) (4,073)
Changes 1n net debt resulting from cash flows (7,829) (353,966)
Debts acquired with NHP Limited - (613,721)
Short term deposit mvestment acquired with NHP Limited - 21,618
Non-cash changes in net debt (23,311} (21,017)
Net debt at the beginning of year (967,086) -
Net debt at the end of the year/peniod (998,226) (967,086)
26 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases
2006 2005
£000 £000
Office lease — expiring after more than five years 137 137

34




o T
L] , A

LIBRA CARECO OFFSHORE SUPERHOLDCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOQUNTS - .- -
Year ended 30 September 2006

27. DISCLOSURES RELATING TO CARE HOMES 1

A summary of the financial statements of Care Homes 1 for the year ended 30 September 2006 and for the peniod
from 13 February 2005 to 30 September 2005, which have been mcluded n the financial statements of the Group, 1s

as follows

Care Homes 1

Balance sheet

Fixed asset investments

Overnding lease premiums, net of amortisation

Deposit Swap Agreement, including accumulated compound interest

Net current assets

Creditors amount falling due after more than one year

Class Al and A2 Secured Notes, net of unamorttzed 1ssue costs and
chscount

Shareholders’ defictt

Profit and loss account

Turnover and gross profit

Net operating costs

Net mterest payabie and similar charges

Profit for the year/ period

Cash flow statement

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Servicing of finance — interest paid on Secured Notes

Management of hiquid resources — short term deposit
withdrawal/(placement)

Investment n overndng lease

Proceeds on disposal of overnding lease

Increase/(Decrease) in cash in the year/penod

At 30
September
2006

£000

47,352
50,251
3,500

(117,391)
(16,288)

Year ended

k{1

September

2006

£000

16,690
(12,031)
,367)

292

8,163
(8,200)

39

2

At

30 September
2005

£000

50,610
47,920
3,490

(118,601)
(16,581)

Period from 18
February 2005 to
30 September
2005

£000

7,986
(5,215)

(2,595)

176

—_—e

4,884
(4,100)

(708)
(972)
895

(1

The summary of financial statements disclosed above 1s prepared in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted 1n the UK (UK GAAP) The financial statements of Care Homes 1 are prepared under accounting
principles generally accepted i the United States (US GAAP) under which the Deposit Swap Agreement 1s valued

in those accounts at £50,925,000, on a mark-to-market basis
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28. DISCLOSURES RELATING TO CARE HOMES 2

A summary of the financial statements of Care Homes 2 for the year ended 30 September 2006 and for the period
from 18 February 2005 to 30 September 2005, which have been included 1n the financial statements of the Group, 1s
as follows

At 30 At
Care Homes 2 September 3D September
2006 2008
£000 £000
Balance sheet
Fixed asset investments
Overnding lease premiums, net of amortisation 138,959 147,139
Deposit Swap Agreement, including accumulated compound mterest 83,132 79,270
Net current hiabihites (2,094) (2,094)
Creditors amount falling due after more than one year
Class Al and A2 Secured Notes, net of unamortized 1ssue costs and
discount (281,403) (2382,100)
Shareholders’ defieit (61,406) (57,785)

Period from
Year ended 18 February

30 September 2005 to 30
2006 September 2005
Profit and loss account £000 £000
Turnover and gross profit 41,732 17,987
Net operating costs (33,124) (13,192)
Net interest payable and sumilar charges (11,898) (6,987)
Taxation (326} (248)
Loss far the year/period (3,616) (2,440)
Cash flow statement
Net cash inflow from operating activities 14,993 10,557
Servicing of finance — interest paid on Secured Notes {16,252) (16,252)
Management of liquid resources — short term deposit withdrawal 1,285 5,685
Increase/(Decrease) i cash n the year/period 26 (10)

The summary of financial statements disclosed above 1s prepared i accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in the UK (UK GAAP) The financial statements of Care Homes 2 are prepared under accounting
principles generally accepted 1n the United States (US GAAP) under which the Deposit Swap Agreement 1s valued
n those accounts at £85,057,000, on a mark-to-market basis
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29.

DISCLOSURES RELATING TO CARE HOMES 3

A summary of the finaneial statements of Care Homes 3 for the year ended 30 September 2006 and for the peniod
from 18 February 2005 to 30 September 2005, which have been included n the financial statements of the Group, 15

as follows
At 30 At
Care Homes 3 September 30 September
2006 2005
£000 £000
Balance sheet
Fixed asset investments,
Overriding lease premiums, net of armortisation 124,126 129,554
Zero Coupon Notes, mcluding accumulated compound interest 45,11 43,106
Net current habilities (23,432) (23,432)
Creditors amount falling due after more than one year
Class Al and A2 Secured Notes, net of unamortized 1ssue costs and
discount (210,592) (211,380)
Shareholders’ deficit (64,727} (62,152)
Period from
18 February
Year ended 30 2005 to 30
September 2006 September 2005
Profit and loss account £000 £000
Turnover and gross profit 36,781 14,241
Net operating costs (28,015) {9,191)
Net interest payable and similar charges (11,339) (6,725)
Loss for the year/penod (2,573) {1,675)
Cash flow statement
Net cash inflow from operating activities 12,977 5,993
Servicing of finange — iterest paid on Secured Notes (12,812) (6,406)
Management of hquid resources — short term deposit
(placement)/withdrawal (200) 366
Decrease 1n cash in the year/period (35) 47)

The summary of financial statements disclosed above 15 prepared n accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in the UK (UK GAAP) The financial statements of Care Homes 3 are prepared under accounfing
principles generally accepted in the Umited States (US GAAP) under which the Deposit Swap Agreement 1s valued
in those accounts at £47,360,000, on a mark-to-market basis

30.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND GUARANTEES

The Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings are guarantors to a £1,172 million term loan facility
agreement entered into by Libra No 3 Limited with Credit Suisse on 15 January 2007 as disclosed n note 32
(n} The facility 1s secured by a fixed and floating charge on group assets and unlimited guarantee from s
group undertakmgs Its subsidiary undertakings mclude the following compamies, which are now owned by
the Group since ! December 2006

Care Homes No 1 Limited NHP Securittes No 8 Limited
Care Homes No 2 Limited NHP Securtties No. 10 Limited
Care Hornes No 3 Limited NHP Securities No 12 Limited

NHP Secunties No, 5 Limited
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31

32,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 September 2006 (2005 £ml}, the Group was charged £15,699,000 loan mterest by
Libra No 3 Limated, the immediate parent company At 30 September 2006, the prnincipal loan amounts of
£405,791,000 and mterest of £1,449,000 remain outstanding Other outstanding amount due to Libra No 3
Limited was £4,007,000 These transactions are disclosed i notes 9, 14, 16 and 17 of these financial
statements

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
a) On 17 November 2006 Care Homes | termmated its AAA Swap Deposit Agreement with General Re

a)

d)

g)

h)

1)

i)

k)

Financial Products Corporation, which guaranteed to provide for the repayment of the £128 10 million
Secured Notes 1n April 2021 The terminated value was £54 48 million The full amount was deposited
in a General Investment Deposit contract (*GIC®) with The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, as its capacity as
a GIC provider on 17 November 2006 at compounded mterest rate of 4 220140% per annum, which was
guaranteed to provide for the repayment of the £128 10 mullion (the nominal value of which 15 £100 0
mullion) Secured Notes m April 2021

On 17 November 2006 Care Homes 2 terminated its AAA Swap Deposit Agreement with General Re
Financial Products Corporation, which guaranteed to provide for the repayment of the £193 21 mullion
Class A Secured Notes m February 2023 The terminated value was £82 37 mullion The full amount was
deposited m a General Investment Deposit Contract (*GIC”) with The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, as its
capacity as a GIC provider on 17 November 2006 at compounded nterest rate of 4 §12011% per annum,
which was guaranteed to provide for the repayment of the £193 21 million (the nominal value of which 1s
£180 0 mulhon) Class A Secured Notes m February 2023

On 17 November 2006 Care Homes 3 termmated its AAA Zero Coupon Notes 1ssued by European
Investment Bank, which guaranteed to provide for the repayment of the £149 21 milhion Class A Secured
Notes in December 2028 The termunated value was £50 79 million The full amount was deposited 1 a
General Investment Deposit Contract (‘GIC*) with The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, as 1ts capacity as a
GIC provider on 17 November 2006 at compounded interest rate of 4 186857% per annum, which was
guaranteed to provide for the repayment of the £149 91 mullion (the nominal value of which 1s £128
million) Class A Secured Notes in December 2028

On 1 December 2006 Care Homes 2 acquured both NHP Secunties No 5 Limited and NHP Securnities
No 8 Limited’s 1ssued 2,000 ‘B’ ordinary shares of £1 each for cash On the same date, Care Homes 3
acquured the entire 1ssued 2,000 ‘B’ ordnary shares of £1 each of NHP Securities No 10 Lmmited

On 1 December 2006, NHP Securities No 1 Limited became the legal owner of the issued shares i Care
Homes 1

On 1 December 2006, Libra CareCo CH2 PropCo Limited became the Jegal owner of the 1ssued shares 1n
Care Homes 2

On 1 December 2006, Libra CareCo CH3 PropCo Limited became the legal owner of the issued shares m
Care Homes 3

On 4 December 2006, Care Homes 1 termunated its General Investment Deposit Contract with The Royal
Bank of Scotland plc and recerved an amount of £54 59 milhon

On 4 December 2006, Care Homes terminated 1ts General Investment Deposit Contract with The Royal
Bank of Scotland ple and received an amount of £82 55 mallion

On 4 December 2006, Care Homes 3 terminated 1ts General Investment Deposit Contract with The Royal
Bank of Scotland plc and recetved an amount of £50 89 million

On 4 December 2006, Care Homes 1, Care Homes 2 and Care Homes 3 redeemed their Secured Notes at
market value of £138 41 mullion, £320 71 million and £260 97 million respectively
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (Continued)

) On 12 December 2006, Delta Commercial Property LP, a limited partnership incorporated m the Isle of
Man, acqured 100% of the issued share capital of Libra No. 2 Limited, the immediate parent
undertaking of Libra No 3 Limated

m) The Group were guarantors to a £1,106 mithon facility agreement entered mnto by Libra No 3 Limited
and Libra No 2 Limited (together, the borrowers) with The Royal Bank of Scotland plc (the lender) The
facithty agreement was subsequently replaced by a new term loan facihity agreement as disclosed in note
32 (n)

n) The Group are guarantors to a £1,172 million term loan facihity agreement entered nto by Libra No 3
Limited, as the borrower and Credit Suisse, as the lender on 15 January 2007

ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The immediate parent undertaking 1s Libra No 3 Limited, a company incorporated and registered in the
Cayman Islands The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party at 30 September 2006 15 The Royal
Bank of Scotland plc, a company mncorporated m Great Britan and registered m Scotland The Royal Bank
of Scotland plc and Libra No 3 Limited have an accounting period end of 31 December, as opposed to the
Company’s accounting year of 30 September, therefore the results of the Group are not consolidated within
1ts immediate parent undertaking or ultimate parent undertaking

As of 12 December 2006, the new ultimate parent undertaking is Delta Commercial Property LP, a limited
partnership incorporated and registered in the Isle of Man In the opiion of the Directors, there 1s no ultimate
controlling party of that company

Copies of the Group’s consolidated financial statements to 30 September 2006, which include the results of
the Company, are available from NHP Group at Block A, Upper Ground Floor, Dukes Court, Duke Street,
Woking, Surrey GU21 5BH
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